From: O"Connell, Andrew (UTC)

To: Kopta, Gregory (UTC

Cc: Tommy Brooks; Gafken, Lisa (ATG); Brad Purdy; lisa@mrg-law.com; jocelyn@mrg-law.com; Shearer, Brett (UTC)
Subject: UG-152286: Full settlement terms, Request for suspension of procedural schedule

Date: Friday, April 22, 2016 11:27:06 AM

Attachments: Term Sheet [clean] - to ALJ.DOCX

Judge Kopta,

On behalf of the parties, Staff requests that the Commission suspend the procedural schedule in
docket UG-152286.

The parties have reached a full settlement. Attached is the term sheet agreed upon by all parties.
We expect to establish dates by early next week for filing the settlement agreement and
corresponding testimony in support of the agreement. Parties will confer to agree on these dates,
and will request approval from the Commission for these dates going forward. Please expect
communication from the parties sometime next week.

Please advise if additional procedure is needed or desired.
Very Best,

Andrew J. O'Connell

Washington State Assistant Attorney General
Utilities & Transportation Commission Division
(360) 664-1192

aoconnell@utc.wa.gov
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CONFIDENTIAL – FOR SETTLEMENT PURPOSES ONLY

Cascade Natural Gas Corporation 

Docket UG-152286

Term Sheet for April 14, 2016 Settlement



The following Term Sheet memorializes the all-party settlement agreement achieved on April 14, 2016 between Cascade Natural Gas Corporation (Cascade or Company), Commission Staff, Public Counsel, Northwest Industrial Gas Users, and The Energy Project.  The settlement agreement resolves all issues in Docket UG-152286.

1. Revenue Requirement – increase of $4.0 million.

2. Early Implementation – Rates will become effective on September 1, 2016 instead of November 1, 2016.

3. Early PGA Filing – Cascade will file its PGA and gas cost deferral amortization filing by August 1, 2016, to be effective on September 1, 2016 instead of November 1, 2016 to coincide with early implementation of rates.

4. Decoupling – 

a. Earnings threshold = authorized ROR with the deferred monthly balances under the decoupling mechanism for September 1, 2016, through December 31, 2016 will be subject to the Commission Basis Report (CBR) filed April 30, 2017, for the 2016 fiscal year.  This amount  will be amortized in a filing effective November 1, 2017, that will be submitted concurrently with the 2017 PGA and temporary technical adjustments; 

b. The subsequent decoupling deferral period, January 1, 2017 through December 31, 2017, will be amortized for rebate or surcharge in a filing effective November 1, 2018 and will be subject to the CBR filed April 30, 2018 for the 2017 fiscal year. The 12-month cycle of deferring then collecting after 11 months will continue for the duration of the mechanism; 

c. The deferred balance will accrue interest at the FERC interest rate consistent with gas cost deferred balances.

d. The annual increase from decoupling will not exceed 3%, with any balances beyond that 3% carried over to the following year; and

e. Cascade will conduct an independent audit of its decoupling program following three years of implementation.  The scope of the independent audit may be informed by the independent audits conducted by PSE and Avista of their decoupling mechanisms.

5. ROR – at 7.35%. 

6. Rate Spread – 

a. Residential class is responsible for 75% of the total proposed revenue increase;

b. No increase for the Special Contracts class;

c. The remaining 25% of the total revenue increase is split amongst all other classes (Commercial, Industrial, Interruptible, and Transportation) on an equal percentage of margin basis; and

d. Load study required prior to next rate case.  Cascade may recover the cost of the study as a period cost in the next rate case. The purpose of this study is to determine the class core responsibilities of daily therms at the city gates. It should sample the constituents of the company’s core usage classes in a manner that captures their geographic, economic, and financial properties in a representative way. It should include work papers demonstrating the daily volumes at each of the Washington system’s city gates.

7. Conservation – 

a. Annual Filings – Cascade shall annually file: a conservation plan for the next calendar year, a conservation achievement report for the previous year, and a conservation tariff adjustment;

b. Conservation Target – Cascade shall achieve 100% of its annual conservation target;

c. Quarterly Meetings – Cascade shall meet with its conservation advisory group (Advisory Group) at least quarterly. These meetings may take place by phone if the advisory group agrees it is appropriate. Topics to be discussed with the Advisory Group shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

i. Conservation potential assessments,

ii. Proposed tariff revisions,

iii. Annual conservation plans,

iv. Annual conservation reports,

v. Proposed program changes,

vi. Marketing and communications strategies,

vii. Evaluation, measurement and verification, and

viii. Low-income weatherization. 

d. Annual Conservation Plan – The Company shall file, by December 1 of each year, an annual conservation plan that includes:

i. The Company’s conservation target for the ensuing year by program/customer class;

ii. The programs and measures that the Company will employ to achieve its target;

iii. The projected budget by program/customer class; 

iv. An estimate of the portfolio’s cost effectiveness; and

v. A list of all measures offered under the conservation programs and the unit energy savings values and customer incentives for each.

e. Annual Conservation Report – The Company shall file, by June 1 of each year, an Annual Conservation Report that details:

i. The previous year’s conservation achievement by program/customer class including low-income weatherization;

ii. All program evaluations completed during the program year;

iii. Total expenditures for the previous year by program/customer class; and 

iv. Cost-effectiveness calculations. 

f. Cost Recovery Tariff Filing — The Company shall file, by October 1 of each year and with a requested effective date of November 1, a conservation cost recovery tariff filing that includes the following information:

i. Total forecast budget for the prior program year by program;

ii. Total expenditures during the prior program year by program;

iii. The total dollar amount that the company is seeking to recover; 

iv. The overall rate increase or decrease; 

v. The total monthly bill increase or decrease for the average customer; and

vi. Work papers that support the calculations. 

g. Advance Copies – Cascade will provide all plans, reports and tariff filings to the Advisory Group at least 30 days in advance of their filing with the Commission.

h. Evaluation, Measurement, and Verification – Cascade shall work with the Advisory Group to develop an evaluation, measurement and verification framework for use in analyzing its conservation program. 

i. Low Income Weatherization – The Company shall, in concert with the Advisory Group and Community Action Agency representatives, investigate the barriers to low-income weatherization within its Washington territory and develop a proposal for overcoming those barriers. The Company and stakeholders may consider approaches that Cascade has employed in other states, such as the low-income weatherization pilot tariff currently operating in the State of Oregon. The parties shall present a proposal to the Commission by December 31, 2016. 

8. Low Income – 

a. Goals – Adopt the following four program goals to guide decisions in all aspects of program design:

a. Keep customers connected to energy service;

b. Provide assistance to more customers than are currently served;

c. Lower the energy burden of program participants, and 

d. Collect data necessary to assess program effectiveness and inform ongoing policy discussions.

b. Advisory Group – Establish an advisory group on Washington Energy Assistance Fund (WEAF), involving key stakeholders, including Public Counsel, Commission Staff, the Energy Project, Cascade’s Staff, and representatives from the Community Action Agencies.  Cascade will, at a minimum, consult the advisory group on the evaluation of program performance, addressing ongoing concerns, determining program budget and exploring alternative program designs. 

c. Tariff – Cascade will file a program tariff on WEAF, specifying at least program description, qualification criteria, list of community action agencies (CAAs), program funding level, and benefit level. Cascade agrees to file program tariff updates in consultation with the advisory group.  Cascade will also file a recovery tariff that collects surcharges from ratepayers for the purpose of funding WEAF as part of the rate case compliance filing. On a going forward basis, any unspent funds will be returned to ratepayers the next year; any deficiency in funds will be collected the next year.  The true-up tariff revision can be filed at the same time as Purchase Gas Adjustment filing but under a separate docket.  The Advisory Group will recommend the program budget for the next year.  The first WEAF recovery tariff will take effect on September 1, 2016.

d. [bookmark: _GoBack]Existing WEAF Funds – The existing WEAF funds (approximately $450,000) will be the beginning balance for the account. This includes both current and previous years.  The advisory group will decide how to use current WEAF balance.  The company must provide the WEAF balance upon request from any stakeholder.  

e. WEAF Funding – The current funding source ($800,000 per year from general expense) will be removed from general rates and WEAF funding will be provided exclusively through the WEAF recovery tariff.

f. Needs Assessment – Cascade will use up to $50,000 of the WEAF current balance to conduct a need assessment study.  The purpose of the study is to identify the number of households in poverty in Cascade’s service area in Washington so that the company and CAAs can better direct the resources to areas with greatest need.  Cascade will contract for the study with Eastern Washington University unless the advisory group agrees otherwise.

g. Program Evaluation – Conduct a program evaluation if customer participation remains low; if the number of benefit recipients and the amount of WEAF support disbursed does not materially increase by the end of 2016-2017 program year from 2015-2016 program year level, the advisory group may consider whether it will be beneficial to use a part of the current balance to hire an independent third party to conduct a program evaluation. The evaluation will, at a minimum, identify the key areas for improvement and align the program design with the program goals. 

h. Annual Reporting – Cascade will file an annual report on its low income program to UTC and make it available to other stakeholders.  Cascade will also file an annual budget for its low income program for the following program year as part of its annual recovery tariff filing.  The WEAF Advisory Group should specify the content for the report.  Cascade must include the actual program cost, including support provided to customers, reimbursement for CAAs’ program delivery cost, and Cascade’s administrative cost on WEAF.

i. Maximum Grant – The WEAF maximum annual grant award cap is currently $500 for each household.  The Advisory Group should evaluate the per-household cap on a going-forward basis.

j. Credit Balance Threshold – No household may receive more WEAF grant if the customer has a credit balance of $300 or more. 

k. WEAF eligibility criteria in lieu of new rules for LIHEAP – In general, WEAF will use LIHEAP qualification criteria except the requirement on showing documents for proof of legal residence status.  WEAF should provide support to eligible customers in need regardless of citizenship status. 

l. Remove Monthly Spending Cap for CAAs and Allow Access to Full Annual Allocation – Cascade will remove the monthly spending cap for each CAA.  No individual CAA may be denied payment of qualified grants unless the combined total annual disbursement for all CAAs reaches the annual program cap.

m. Reimbursement of CAAs’ Program Delivery Cost – The reimbursement of CAAs’ program delivery cost will change from 20% of disbursed WEAF amount to $75 per household processed by CAAs.  

n. Customer outreach and education – The Company will consult with the WEAF Advisory Group to develop and implement a plan to strengthen outreach to potentially qualified customers.  

o. Program Design – Alternative Form of Discount – Stakeholders should collaborate to explore the option of a rate discount program or a percentage of household income program. The company may require the option of certifying a person’s income for two years instead of only one year in certain conditions.

p. Five year Plan for Funding Level - The funding level for WEAF will increase by 5.1% (twice the percentage of the granted bill increase for an average residential customer in this rate case) each year for the next five years.  These amounts will be set as the “not-to-exceed” caps for each program year in Cascade’s WEAF Tariff.  The funding caps for the next five years are as follows: 

		2016 – 2017 

		$1,047,000



		2017 – 2018 

		$1,100,000



		2018 – 2019

		$1,156,000



		2019 – 2020

		$1,215,000



		2020 – 2021

		$1,276,000





These amounts could be adjusted if another general rate case is filed.  The advisory group will advise Cascade on WEAF budget, the amount to be collected through the WEAF surcharge.  The WEAF budget shall not exceed the cap established above.  Cascade may file a petition with the commission to modify the cap amounts.

9. Next rate case contingent on a load study being completed and the unbilled revenues being properly calculated and identified by revenue type (gas cost revenue, margin revenue, and any other revenue source).

a. Separate conservation revenues and WEAF revenues from WACOG for reporting purposes.

b. Unbilled revenues: Cascade will use a methodology and accounting for unbilled revenues in accordance with accepted industry practices in which unbilled revenues are trued-up monthly and verified for reasonableness.

c. Bifurcation of booked revenues for accounting purposes between true gas cost revenue, margin revenue, and all other revenue sources.

10. Commission Basis Report (CBR) – Presented consistently each year in the following manner:

a. ISWC – will be calculated each year using the same method used in UG-060256, categorize accounts to allow net pension assets, but exclude any accounts which earn returns and should be booked to non-operating investment. Cascade will review the accounts included in ISWC and re-categorize accounts as necessary.  

b. Weather Normalization – 

i. Use 10 years of usage and weather data;

ii. Use NOAA weather data (both actual temperature and “normal” temperature benchmark);

iii. Refine regression models to exclude insignificant monthly heating degree day variables;

iv. Include trend variable in the regression models when appropriate, and correct common statistical problems such as serial correlations.  Staff may provide technical assistance; 

v. Identify outliers by comparing predicted usage and actual usage and double check data accuracy; re-specify regression models if necessary; and

vi. Use an alternative way of reporting monthly usage if unbilled therms are not trued up monthly: align heating degree days with billing cycles on a monthly basis, rather than using monthly usage data that include gross estimates of unbilled therms.
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